
P:\Housing\Land Bank\Meetings\2016\1-5-2016\Minutes 1-5-2016.docx 

1 of 2 

Minutes Land Bank Board of Trustees 
Tuesday, January 5, 2016 - 3:00 p.m. City of Hutchinson, Kansas 

City Hall, 125 East Ave. B 

 
1) CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL     

 The following members were present:   Mark Eaton, Sue Poltera, Dan Garber 
and Jim Gilliland.  Luke McConnaughy was absent.  Staff in attendance were 
Jana McCarron, Director of Planning; Paul Brown, City Attorney; Amy Denker, 
Housing Program Coordinator; and Stephanie Stewart, Planning Technician.   
  

2) APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
The minutes of December 1, 2015 were approved on a motion by Gilliland, 
seconded by Poltera, passed unanimously. 

 
3) ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

Eaton updated the Board on the progress of the Interfaith Housing Services Test 
Build on Avenue G.  The foundation and basement have been poured.  The 
expected completion time is early February. 
 

4) UPDATES 
 

4a. Denker gave the financial report.  She said that the new financial year has 
begun and explained the difference between the current balance and the 
balance as of the end of 2015 was on account of transfer of funds from the 
Hutchinson Community Foundation to the City.  The City has allocated $10,000 
to the Land Bank for the 2016 fiscal year. 
 
4b. Denker updated the Board on the transfer of 300 W. Sherman to the City of 
Hutchinson.  McCarron said that City Council has approved the vacation of the 
alley separating the property from Ashmeade Park.  Gilliland asked about the 
timeframe for developing the park.  McCarron said that the Parks and Facilities 
Department plans to include funding for development in the 2017 Budget. 
 

5) PROPERTY REPORT 
 

Denker said that some Land Bank properties were affected by the recent ice 
storm.  The mowing contractor has been notified and will be removing downed 
tree limbs from the properties.  Gilliland asked how much the removal will cost.  
Denker said estimates were from $35-$50 per property. 

 
6) NEW BUSINESS 
 

6a.     Election of Officers 
Gilliland motioned to appoint Eaton as Chair and Poltera as Vice-Chair.  Garber 
seconded the motion.  Garber motioned to appoint Gilliland as Treasurer.  
Poltera seconded.  The motions passed unanimously.   



P:\Housing\Land Bank\Meetings\2016\1-5-2016\Minutes 1-5-2016.docx 

2 of 2 

Gilliland asked staff about the duty of the Treasurer to be bonded.  McCarron 
said that staff would research and report back during the next Board meeting.  
 
6b.      2015 Land Bank Annual Report 
Denker presented the 2015 Land Bank Annual Report Draft to the board.  The 
annual report is a state requirement for Land Banks.  The annual report included 
Land Bank goals, accomplishments, lots acquired, the 2016 work plan and the 
2015 financial report.  
 
Eaton asked about the 2016 work plan, specifically the two feature 
neighborhoods of the Hutchinson Healthy Neighborhoods Initiative.  He asked if 
there were available lots in both neighborhoods as well as the neighborhood 
around the Avenue G Test Build site.  Denker said that there are lots available 
in the Avenue A Elementary neighborhood and that staff is working with 
neighborhood facilitators about the needs of the neighborhood.  McCarron 
commented that the Graber neighborhood has also indicated that they are 
interested in obtaining more open space.  There are few vacant lots in this 
neighborhood.  Eaton said that there are numerous lots in the Avenue G vicinity 
and that the potential to expand Interfaith’s work is promising. 
 
Denker found a spelling mistake.  Gilliland moved to approve the 2015 Land 
Bank Annual Report with the one correction.  Poltera seconded.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
6d.   Review of state statute on Tax Sale properties 
Brown reviewed the state statute pertaining to tax sale redemption laws.  He 
noted that the statute does not allow the previous owner to redeem the property 
by paying the taxes owed.  This law was created to address any invalid sales 
from problems during the procedures, such as improper notification, or the 
eligibility of the purchaser.  While this law does limit obtaining title insurance for 
one year on tax sale properties, it does not limit the Board’s ability to sell 
properties, especially for buyers not wishing to pursue title insurance. 
 
Eaton asked if the state would consider changing this law for Land Banks.  Brown 
said that this law has been in place since 1949 and affects all counties within the 
state. He felt it was highly unlikely that the State would consider changing the 
statute. 
 
6e.    15-LB-05, Application to Purchase 00000 E 5th 
Denker notified the board that the applicant has rescinded the offer.  The 
applicant was in the process of purchasing the neighboring house but chose not 
to pursue the purchase.  Gilliland asked if the house was for sale and if so, could 
the property’s real estate agent be sent information pertaining to the available 
lot.  McCarron said that staff would look into it. 
 
6c.   2016 Funding Allocation 
McCarron introduced staff’s proposed budget for the 2016 year.  Denker said the 
budget was the same as 2015, with one increase to cover rising insurance costs.  



P:\Housing\Land Bank\Meetings\2016\1-5-2016\Minutes 1-5-2016.docx 

3 of 2 

Poltera motioned to approve the budget, seconded by Garber.  Passed 
unanimously. 
 

7) OTHER 
a.    Gilliland asked for more information about the design competitions for the 
Avenue C properties.  Denker said that the idea came from attending the 
Reclaiming Vacant Properties Conference she attended in May.  Other 
communities have utilized design competitions to increase interest in vacant lots.  
These competitions vary from architectural design concepts to actual small 
projects.  The winners have received a financial awards as well as the ability to 
implement their proposed project on the site.   
 
Staff’s goal is to work with the Board on developing the competition guidelines 
over the coming months. 
 
b.    Gilliland requested an update on the Rental Registration and Inspection 
Program.  McCarron said that as of January 4th, 808 properties have been 
registered, amounting to approximately $20,000 in fees.  Fred Salisbury has 
been hired to fill the inspector position.  He comes from the private home 
inspection sector.  Landlords have until March 31st to register their properties.  If 
the property is not registered or an exemption approved by the 31st, a penalty 
fee will be charged to the property for each month it is not registered.   
 

 
8) ADJOURN  
 

The meeting was adjourned at 3:40 p.m.  The next meeting will be Tuesday, 
February 2, 2016 at 3:00 p.m. 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Amy Denker 
 
 
Approved this _______day of __________________ 
 

 
Attest:____________________________________________ 

1st March, 2016




